
SOLIHULL METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Thursday, 17 December 2020 at 6.00 pm 
 
 
 
 

PLEASE NOTE that any member of the press and 
public may view the proceedings at this virtual 

meeting via this weblink  
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC7DDSVoAIgTn

wgp0Ku8iFLQ 
 

 

 

 
 
 

CPH Climate Change, Planning & 
Housing Decision Session  

 

Public Document Pack



Disclosing Pecuniary Interests - What Must You Do? 

 

 (a) You must complete a declaration of your disclosable pecuniary interests, including those of 
your spouse/civil partner (or someone with whom you are living as such) and send it to the 
Monitoring Officer within 28 days of your election or appointment to the Council. 

(b)  When you attend a meeting of the Council, Cabinet, Scrutiny Board, Committee, Sub-
Committee or Joint Committee etc, and a matter arises in which you have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest, unless you have been granted a dispensation, you must: 

 Declare the interest if you have not already registered it 

 Not participate in any discussion or vote 

 Leave the meeting room until the matter has been dealt with 

 Give written notice of any unregistered interest to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of 
the meeting 

(c) If you are the Leader or a Cabinet Portfolio Holder you may not exercise any of your 
delegated powers as a single member in relation to a matter in which you have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or take any other step except to give written notice of any unregistered interest 
to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of your becoming aware of the interest, or arrange for 
another person or body to deal with the matter. 

 

Disclosable Interest 

 

Description 

Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain by you 
or your partner. 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the Council) 
made or provided within 12 months of your declaration of interests in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election 
expenses. 

Contracts Any contract between you or your partner (or a firm or body corporate in which you or 
your partner is a partner or a director, or in the securities of which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest)) and the Council  
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Council and which gives you 
or your partner a right to occupy the land or receive income. 

Licences Any licence held by you or your partner (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the Council for a month or longer. 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge)— 
(a) the landlord is the Council; and 
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial interest i.e. a firm or 
body corporate in which you or your partner is a partner or a director, or in the securities 
of which you or your partner has a beneficial interest. 

Securities Any beneficial interest held by you or your partner in securities of a body where— 
 
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the 
Council; and 
(b) either— 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of 
the total issued share capital of that body; or 
 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner has a 
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
class. 

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a 
collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets 
Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a 
building society. 



 
  

SOLIHULL METROPOLITAN  
BOROUGH COUNCIL 



 
To: 
Councillors A Mackiewicz, M McLoughlin 
and J Fairburn 
 

 
NICK PAGE 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
Council House, Manor Square 
Solihull, West Midlands. B91 3QB 
Tel. 0121 704 6000  
 
Paul Rogers 
Tel: 0121 704 6550 
Email: paul.rogers@solihull.gov.uk 
 
Date: Tuesday, 8th December 2020  
 

 
CPH CLIMATE CHANGE, PLANNING & HOUSING DECISION SESSION 

  
 Thursday, 17 December 2020 

 
AGENDA 

 

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST  
 

3.  QUESTIONS AND DEPUTATIONS  
 

4.  BROWNFIELD LAND REGISTER (Pages 5 - 32) 
 

To seek approval to formally publish the third annual review of the Solihull 
Brownfield Land Register 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Meeting date: 17 December 2020 

 

Report to: Cabinet Member Climate Change, 
Planning and Housing 

Subject/report 
title: 

Brownfield Land Register 

Report from: Perry Wardle  

Assistant Director – Growth and Development 

Report 
author/lead 
contact officer: 

Emma Tinsley-Evans – emma.tinsley-evans@solihull.gov.uk 

 

 
Wards affected:  

☒ All Wards | ☐ Bickenhill | ☐ Blythe | ☐ Castle Bromwich | ☐ Chelmsley Wood | 

☐ Dorridge/Hockley Heath | ☐ Elmdon | ☐ Kingshurst/Fordbridge | ☐ Knowle | 

☐ Lyndon | ☐ Meriden | ☐ Olton | ☐ Shirley East | ☐ Shirley South | 

☐ Shirley West | ☐ Silhill | ☐ Smith’s Wood | ☐ St Alphege 

Public/private 
report: 

Public 

Exempt by virtue 
of paragraph: 

      

 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

1.1 To seek approval to formally publish the third annual review of the Solihull Brownfield 
Land Register. 

2. Decision(s) recommended 

2.1 That as part of the review of the Solihull Brownfield Land Register: 

(a) The entries on the current Register be updated to reflect the changes set out in 
Appendix A; and 

(b) The sites identified in Appendices C and D of this report be added to Part 1 of 
the Register. 

3. Matters for Consideration 

3.1 In April 2017 the Government introduced a requirement on Local Planning Authorities 
(LPAs) to publish a Brownfield Land Register (BLR), and thereafter to review the 
register at least once every 12 months.  This will be the third annual review of the 
Register. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

 
 

Background 

3.2 A BLR is a list of previously developed sites that are potentially suitable for residential 
development and it is to be kept in 2 parts: 

 Part 1 includes all sites categorised as previously developed land which are 
considered suitable for residential development. 

 Part 2 allows LPAs to select sites from Part 1 and grant “permission in 
principle” (PiP) for housing led development. PiP will establish the fundamental 
principles of development in terms of the use, location and amount of 
development. In some respects it is similar to an outline consent, however, 
planning permission does not exist until a later Technical Details Consent 
(TDC) is applied for and approved. 

3.3 Sites are required to meet to meet the Government’s definition of previously 
developed land as set out in the glossary at Annex 2 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF), which is: 

“Land which is or was occupied by a permanent structure, including the curtilage 
of the developed land (although it should not be assumed that the whole of the 
curtilage should be developed) and any associated fixed surface infrastructure. 
This excludes: land that is or was last occupied by agricultural or forestry 
buildings; land that has been developed for minerals extraction or waste disposal 
by landfill, where provision for restoration has been made through development 
management procedures; land in built-up areas such as residential gardens, 
parks, recreation grounds and allotments; and land that was previously developed 
but where the remains of the permanent structure or fixed surface structure have 
blended into the landscape.” 

3.4 Previously developed sites in the Green Belt may be considered if they meet the 
criteria.  

3.5 Land is only included on the Register if it meets the definition and is considered 
suitable, available and achievable as defined by the Town and Country Planning 
(Brownfield Land Register) Regulations 2017 (the Regulations) as follows: 

o Suitable: 

- Land which has planning permission, a grant of planning permission in 
principle or allocated in a local development plan document for residential 
development. 

- In the opinion of the LPA is appropriate for residential development having 
regard to impact on the natural and built environment, local amenity and any 
representations received. 

o Available: 

- The owner / developer has expressed intention to sell or develop the land 

- There are no other issues relating land ownership or other legal impediments 

Page 6

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/810197/NPPF_Feb_2019_revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/810197/NPPF_Feb_2019_revised.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/403/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/403/contents/made


 

 
 

which may prevent development.  

o Achievable:  

- Development is likely to take place within 15 years.  

3.6 However, entry onto Part 1 of the Register does not guarantee that a site would 
progress to Part 2 of the Register or receive planning permission. 

3.7 The first Solihull BLR was published in April 2018. It was informed by a specific and 
targeted brownfield land ‘Call for Sites’ exercise, as well as utilising existing sources of 
information such as the most recent Strategic Housing and Employment Land 
Availability Assessment (SHELAA), and additional sites promoted through the Local 
Plan Review process. An examination of the planning register was also undertaken to 
identify all brownfield sites with an unimplemented extant planning permission for 
residential development.  

3.8 Given the importance of establishing a full and comprehensive a list of suitable 
brownfield sites for Part 1 of the Register, particularly in the context of the current 
review of the Local Plan, no sites were put forward for inclusion on Part 2 of the BLR. 

3.9 In accordance with the Regulations the LPA must review the entries on the Register at 
least once within each register year. The first and second updates of the BLR were 
approved for publication by the Cabinet Member at the November 2018 and 
November 2019 decision sessions respectively. 

3.10 In the interests of consistency and to ensure that information is standardised, all Local 
Authorities are required to publish brownfield land data to an agreed format, 
containing pre-determined data fields. Up until October 2019, a site was removed from 
the Brownfield Land Register once it had been developed or was no longer 
considered to meet the definition of brownfield land. However, guidance now requires 
that if the site no longer needs to be listed, it should remain on the register for 
historical reasons and not be deleted. 

3.11 In such cases an additional ‘end date’ data field should be completed which shows the 
date the site was developed or no longer meets the requirements for inclusion on the 
Register. 

4. Brownfield Land Register Update 

4.1 The third annual update of the BLR is now due. The Council’s approach to updating 
the BLR has been has follows: 

- Use the current BLR as the starting point for the review; 

- Keep all existing sites on the BLR, noting where there has been a change in 
circumstances which will require amendments to be made. This includes the 
completion of an ‘end date’ for sites that have an implemented planning permission 
or no longer meet the requirements to be included on the Register 

- Assess any new sites that have been submitted for inclusion on the BLR since its 
last publication; 

Page 7

http://eservices.solihull.gov.uk/mgInternet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=525&MId=7125
http://eservices.solihull.gov.uk/mgInternet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=654&MId=7927


 

 
 

- Assess any new sites that have been promoted through the Local Plan Review 
process that have not already been considered; 

- Review the planning register to identify any new brownfield sites with an 
unimplemented extant planning permission for residential development. 

4.2 The Council has not undertaken a specific ‘call for brownfield sites’ exercise for this 
update as there is now more general awareness of BLRs along with the opportunity to 
submit sites at any point throughout the year. Furthermore, a number of additional 
sites have been submitted through the Local Plan Review process. These have also 
been considered as part of this third annual update. Consequently, there will be no 
Part 2 of the Register at this stage, but a continued focus on ensuring a 
comprehensive Part 1 Register. 

4.3 Taking the existing 2019 BLR as the starting point, a total of 68 sites meeting the 
requirements are included on the Register. They yield an estimated capacity of 
between 1558 and 2407 dwellings1. Having reviewed these sites, a number have had 
a change in their planning status (e.g. a planning permission that has now been 
implemented). The BLR will need to be updated accordingly and as a result of the 
review, 7 sites have had a change in circumstances such that they will remain on the 
register with an ‘end date’. This reflects that the site has been developed or is no 
longer considered to meet the requirements for inclusion, but should remain on the 
Register for information purposes. 

4.4 A summary of changes to the entries on the existing BLR is provided at Appendix A. 

4.5 Whilst a targeted call for Brownfield sites has not been specifically undertaken for this 
current review of the BLR, stakeholders are free to suggest sites for specific inclusion 
on the Register at any time. Two sites have been submitted for inclusion in this third 
annual update.  These sites has been assessed, firstly to determine whether they fall 
within the NPPF definition of previously developed land and secondly to establish if 
the site is suitable, available and achievable as defined by the Regulations.  The 
assessments are provided at Appendix B and conclude that the sites do not meet the 
requirements to be included on the BLR. 

4.6 Since publication of the last BLR update, a total of 29 new sites have also been 
promoted for inclusion in the Council’s Local Plan Review. Having assessed whether 
these sites are suitable for inclusion on the BLR, 2 are considered to meet the 
requirements and will therefore be added to the Register. These sites and their 
assessments are included at Appendix C. Based on the context and characteristics of 
the sites, an estimated capacity range has been suggested. Given that they are 
previously developed sites in the Green Belt, the indicative capacity must be based on 
a policy compliant scheme; for instance a redevelopment that does not have a 
materially greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt.  It should also be noted 
that this is only an indicative capacity at this stage – more specific capacities will be 
known if and when sites are taken forward through the planning application process.  
This would allow detailed design matters to be taken into account and, if relevant, any 
‘very special circumstances’ cases if a more intense development of a Green Belt site 

                                            
1 However, many of the sites are already included in the Council’s land supply assumptions and are accounted 
for or included in the Local Plan Review. 

Page 8



 

 
 

were to be pursued.  

4.7 Finally, having examined the planning register since the last update of the BLR, a 
further 5 sites with an unimplemented extant planning permission for residential 
development, which meet the definition of previously developed land, have been 
identified. As part of this third annual update, these will be added to the BLR as their 
suitability for residential development has already been established through the 
planning application process. These sites are identified in Appendix D.  

Summary 

4.8 Where a site on the existing BLR has had a change in planning status, the Register 
will be updated to reflect this (as per Appendix A). The BLR will also include 2 new 
sites that have been identified through the Local Plan Review ‘Call for Sites’ (as per 
Appendix C) and a further 5 sites identified from the Planning Register will be added 
to the BLR (as per Appendix D). 

5. What options have been considered and what is the evidence telling us about 
them? 

5.1 In accordance with the Regulations, the local planning authority must review the 
entries in the Register at least once within each Register year. Whilst the Council 
could choose to review the Register more frequently than this, the option of not 
reviewing the Register would not be compliant with the regulations. 

6. Reasons for recommending preferred option 

6.1 The Council’s first BLR was published in April 2018 following completion of non-
statutory additional steps, including a specific ‘call for brownfield sites’ exercise and 
consultation on a draft Register. As a result, the Council carried out a meaningful and 
robust exercise to identify suitable, available and achievable brownfield land. This was 
appropriate as it was the first BLR to be adopted. 

6.2 A lighter touch approach to reviewing the register is considered a proportionate and 
balanced approach, especially for the first few annual reviews and given that new 
sites have continued to be submitted and identified as part of the current review of the 
Local Plan. Periodically it may be appropriate to repeat the additional non-statutory 
steps to add value to future reviews, but this is not considered necessary on an 
annual basis. 

6.3 If the Council does not review its Brownfield Land Register at least once within each 
register year, it will not fulfil its statutory duty. 

7. Implications and Considerations 

7.1 State how the proposals in this report contribute to the priorities in the Council Plan: 

Priority: Contribution: 

Economy: Brownfield land can make an important 
contribution towards the supply of land to 

Page 9

https://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Ourvisionandpriorities/Council_plan.pdf


 

 
 

1. Revitalising our towns and local 
centres. 

2. UK Central (UKC) and maximising the 
opportunities of HS2. 

3. Increase the supply of housing, 
especially affordable and social 
housing. 

accommodate the borough’s housing 
needs. The BLR will complement the 
existing local plan processes for identifying 
sites that are suitable for housing. 

Environment: 

4. Enhance Solihull’s natural environment. 
5. Improve Solihull’s air quality. 
6. Reduce Solihull’s net carbon emissions. 

In order to ensure that Green Belt release is 
kept to a minimum, the annual review of the 
BLR demonstrates that the Council is 
seeking to exhaust all opportunities to 
identify brownfield land that is suitable, 
available and achievable. 

People and Communities: 

7. Take action to improve life chances in 
our most disadvantaged communities. 

8. Enable communities to thrive. 
9. Sustainable, quality, affordable 

provision for adults & children with 
complex needs. 

The identification and redevelopment of 
brownfield sites can help to bring more land 
forward for meeting development needs 
and/or secure better development outcomes 
for local communities. 

7.2 Consultation and Scrutiny: 

7.2.1 There is no statutory requirement for consultation at this stage. To date, there have 
been no scrutiny issues with regard to the requirement to publish or review the BLR. 

7.3 Financial implications: 

7.3.1 Both the initial establishment and the on-going maintenance and review of the BLR 
has placed additional workload on officers. Whilst it is difficult to assess the exact cost 
of the work as it sits within the wider functions of the service rather than as a discrete 
task, the costs have broadly been met by the provision of New Burdens funding from 
the MHCLG specifically for BLRs. 

7.4 Legal implications: 

7.4.1 The LPA will not fulfil its statutory duty if entries on the BLR are not reviewed at least 
once within each Register year. 

7.5 Risk implications: 

7.5.1 None identified. 

7.6 Equality implications: 

7.6.1 None identified. 

Page 10



 

 
 

8. List of appendices referred to 

8.1 Appendix A – Summary of changes to the entries on the existing BLR. 

8.2 Appendix B – Assessment of new BLR Site Submissions. 

8.3 Appendix C – New Local Plan Call for Sites submissions to be included on the BLR. 

8.4 Appendix D - New sites from the Planning Register to be added to the BLR. 

9. Background papers used to compile this report 

9.1 Second Annual update of the Solihull Brownfield Land Register 

10. List of other relevant documents 

10.1 National Planning Policy Framework 

10.2 Town and Country Planning (Brownfield Land Register) Regulations 2017  

Page 11

https://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/Brownfield-Land-Register.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/810197/NPPF_Feb_2019_revised.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/403/contents/made


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A - Summary of changes to entries on the current Brownfield Land Register  

(Entries where changes / updates are to be made are highlighted in blue. Where a site includes an ‘end date’ this reflects that the site has been 
developed or is no longer considered to meet the requirements for inclusion, but should remain on the Register for information purposes.) 

Reference1 
Site Name 

Site Address Site Area (ha) Source2 
Capacity Changes to status 

of the site on the 
BLR 

Min Max 

BLR/010 Meriden Road Depot Meriden Road, Hampton in Arden 5.21 BCFS  5 10 No change 

BLR/013 Widney Manor House Widney Manor House, Bentley Heath 1 BCFS 1 2 No change 

BLR/015 
Land East of 106 - 118 Old Station 
Road  

Old Station Road, Hampton in Arden 0.5 BCFS 1 2 No change 

BLR/016 Pheasant Oak Farm Hob Lane, Balsall Common 1.37 BCFS 10 20 No change 

BLR/017 National Motorcycle Museum Coventry Road, Bickenhill 3.60 BCFS 50 125 No change 

BLR/018 Windmill House Windmill Lane, Balsall Common 0.3 BCFS 2 3 No change 

BLR/021 
Land at and land to the rear of 146 
– 152 Tilehouse Lane 

Tilehouse Lane, Tidbury Green 0.87 BCFS 5 10 No change 

BLR/024 1806 Warwick Road Warwick Road, Knowle 3.01 BCFS 1 3 No change 

BLR/025 1817 Warwick Road Warwick Road, Knowle 1.46 BCFS 1 3 No change 

BLR/036 Service Station & land rear Kenilworth Road, Balsall Common 0.66 BCFS 12 18 No change 

BLR/037 Trevallion Stud Wootton Green Lane, Balsall Common 5.81 BCFS 14 16 No change 

                                                      
1 BLR is the reference given to sites submitted through the Brownfield Land Call for Sites exercise. CfS is the reference given to sites submitted through the wider Local Plan 
Review process. PR is the reference given to sites extracted from the planning register. 
2 BCFS – From the brownfield call for sites exercise,  CfS– identified via Local Plan Call for Sites / SHELAA land availability study, PR – from the planning register. 

P
age 13

http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/BLR-010.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/BLR-013.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/BLR-015.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/BLR-016.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/BLR-017.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/BLR-018.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/BLR-021.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/BLR-024.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/BLR-025.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/BLR-036.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/BLR-037.pdf


Reference1 
Site Name 

Site Address Site Area (ha) Source2 
Capacity Changes to status 

of the site on the 
BLR 

Min Max 

BLR/038 Builders Yard Wootton Green Lane, Balsall Common 0.84 BCFS 8 10 No change 

BLR/039 Mell Square Solihull 4.15 BCFS 50 200 No change 

BLR/040 Four Winds Catherine De Barnes Lane, Solihull 0.74 BCFS 2 4 No change 

BLR/044 Land Rear of Lavender Hall Farm Lavender Hall Lane, Berkswell 3.83 BCFS 1 2 No change 

BLR/054 Oak Farm Hampton Lane, Catherine-de-Barnes 1.85 BCFS 20 25 No change3 

BLR/057 354 Stratford Road, Shirley 354 Stratford Road, Shirley 0.228 BCFS 30 75 

Planning 
application 
pending 
consideration 

BLR/058 NEC Land 
South Way / Pendigo Way / North Way, 
Bickenhill 

73.42 BCFS 250 600 No change 

BLR/059 Red Star Sports Ground Lugtrout Lane, Solihull 1.5 BCFS 1 2 No change  

BLR/061 147 Lugtrout Lane, Solihull Lugtrout Lane, Solihull 0.26 BCFS 1 3 No change 

BLR/062 Land at Highlands Road, Solihull Land at Highlands Road, Solihull 0.5 BCFS 25 200 No change 

CfS 48 Earlsmere House  Warings Green Road, Solihull 0.85 CfS 1 2 No change 

CfS108 Blythe House  Widney Manor Road 1.85 CfS 1 2 No change 

CfS 155 
St George and St Teresa Primary 
School Mill Lane, Bentley Heath 0.95 CfS 31 No change 

                                                      
3 Appeal dismissed 

P
age 14

http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/BLR-038.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/BLR-039.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/BLR-040.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/BLR-044.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/BLR-054.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/BLR-057.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/BLR-058.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/BLR-059.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/BLR-061.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/BLR-062.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/CfS-48.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/CfS-108.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/CfS-155.pdf


Reference1 
Site Name 

Site Address Site Area (ha) Source2 
Capacity Changes to status 

of the site on the 
BLR 

Min Max 

CfS 222 
Moat Lane Depot and Vulcan 
House Industrial Estate Moat Lane, Solihull 3.05 CfS 92 No change 

CfS 421 Silver Trees Farm, Balsall Street Silver Trees Farm, Balsall Street 0.4 CfS 1 3 No change 

CfS 506 227 Lugtrout Lane 227 Lugtrout Lane, Solihull 0.4 CfS 1 3 No change 

PR9 Redundant Power Station, Frogmore Lane, Fen End,    CV8 1NT 0.96 PR 1 No change 

PR16 Cleobury Barn, Cleobury Lane, Earlswood, B94 6AF 0.10 PR 1 No change 

PR17 Garage Oakfield Farm, Bradnocks Marsh Lane, Bradnocks Marsh, B92 0LH 0.08 PR 1 Update BLR with 
an ‘end date’ to 
reflect 
implemented 
permission 

PR20 Wyevale Garden Centre, Barston Lane, Barston, B92 0JJ 2.15 PR 30 No change 

PR21 land rear of 242, Prince of 23Wales, Solihull Lodge,      B14 4LJ 0.03 PR 1 No change 

PR22 Village Hall, 3 Elmdon Road, Marston Green, B37 7BT 0.26 PR 10 No change 

PR25 1 Hermitage Road, Solihull B91 2FW 0.01 PR 2 No change 

PR26 Sapphire House (West), Streetsbrook Road, Solihull B91 1RD 0.83 PR 105 No change 

PR27 Sapphire House (East), Streetsbrook Road, Solihull B91 1RD 0.77 PR 111 No change 

PR28 Marlborough House, 679 Warwick Road, Solihull B91 3DA 0.09 PR 4 No change 

PR35 179-189 Warwick Road, Olton B92 7AW 0.18 PR 7 Update BLR with 
an ‘end date’ to 
reflect 
implemented 
permission 

P
age 15

http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/CfS-222.pdf
https://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/CfS-421.pdf
https://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/CfS-506.pdf
http://cp-localview/iWardsandPollingDistricts/default.aspxhttp:/www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR-9.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR-16.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR-17.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR-20.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR-21.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR-22.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR-25.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR-26.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR-27.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR-28.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR-35.pdf


Reference1 
Site Name 

Site Address Site Area (ha) Source2 
Capacity Changes to status 

of the site on the 
BLR 

Min Max 

PR37 Five Oaks, Church Lane, Meriden CV7 7HX 0.24 PR 1 No change 

PR40 144 Stratford Road, Shirley B90 3BB 0.02 PR 2 No change 

PR41 293 Lugtrout Lane, Catherine de Barnes B91 2TW 0.15 PR 1 No change 

PR42 Building & land opposite 26 Houndsfield Lane, Tidbury Green B90 1PR 0.14 PR 2 No change 

PR43 20, Lock House, Waterside, Dickens Heath B90 1UD 0.03 PR 1 No change 

PR48 Shiloh, Hob Lane, Burton Green CV7 0.15 PR 1 No change 

PR50 167a Wood Lane, Earlswood B94 5JL 0.39 PR 3 No change 

PR54 De Mulder Enterprises Ltd, Fillongley Road, Meriden CV7 7HU 0.11 PR 1 No change 

PR55 73 Cranmore Road, Shirley B90 4PU 0.03 PR 3 No change 

PR56 69-71 Cranmore Road, Shirley B90 4PU 0.05 PR 6 No change 

PR57 Luna Rose and Knowle Interiors, (#20), St Johns Way, Knowle B93 0LE 0.02 PR 2 No change 

PR58 Luna Rose and Knowle Interiors, (#5), St Johns Way, Knowle B93 0LE 0.01 PR 2 No change 

PR61 Land rear of 214, Cooks Lane, Kingshurst  B37 6NH 0.20 PR 8 No change 

PR62 Spar Stores, 1The Green, Meriden CV7 7LN 0.02 PR 2 No change 

PR63 Kixley Farm, Kixley Lane, Knowle B93 0JF 0.38 PR 1 No change 

PR64 The Green, Stratford Road, Shirley B90 4LA 19.84 PR 330 Update BLR with 
an ‘end date’ to 
reflect 
implemented 
permission 

PR65 The Green, Stratford Road, Shirley B90 4LA 19.84 PR 246 Update BLR with 
an ‘end date’ to 
reflect 
implemented 
permission 

P
age 16

http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR-37.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR-40.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR-41.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR-42.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR-43.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR-48.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR-50.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR-54.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR-55.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR-56.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR-57.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR-58.pdf
https://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR61.pdf
https://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR62.pdf
https://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR63.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/CfS-124.pdf
http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/CfS-124.pdf


Reference1 
Site Name 

Site Address Site Area (ha) Source2 
Capacity Changes to status 

of the site on the 
BLR 

Min Max 

PR66 74 Maple Leaf Drive, Marston Green B37 7JB 0.05 PR 4 No change 

PR67 301 Barston Lane, Catherine de Barnes B91 2SX 0.02 PR 1 No change 

PR68 The Whitehouse Kennels, Back Lane, Meriden CV7 7LD 0.84 PR 4 No change 

PR69 155a Main Road, Meriden CV7 7NH 0.02 PR 2 No change 

PR70 6 Land Lane, Marston Green B37 7DE 0.05 PR 2 No change 

PR71 6 Land Lane, Marston Green B37 7DE 0.05 PR 1 No change 

PR72 The Willows, Netherwood Lane, Chadwick End B93 0BD 0.11 PR 1 No change 

PR73 Land rear of 42-44 Brackleys Way, Solihull 0.18 PR 7 Update BLR with 
an ‘end date’ to 
reflect 
implemented 
permission 

PR74 Garages, Willow Way, Chelmsley Wood 0.09 PR 7 Update BLR with 
an ‘end date’ to 
reflect 
implemented 
permission 

PR75 36 Faulkner Road, Solihull B92  8SY 0.21 PR 7 Update BLR with 
an ‘end date’ to 
reflect 
implemented 
permission 

P
age 17

https://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR66.pdf
https://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR67.pdf
https://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR68.pdf
https://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR69.pdf
https://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR70.pdf
https://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR71.pdf
https://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR72.pdf
https://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR73.pdf
https://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR74.pdf
https://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR75.pdf


Reference1 
Site Name 

Site Address Site Area (ha) Source2 
Capacity Changes to status 

of the site on the 
BLR 

Min Max 

PR76 342 Stratford Road, Shirley B90 3DW 0.07 PR 11 No change 

PR77 132 Station Road, Balsall Common CV7 7FF 0.13 PR 1 No change 

PR78 Enterprise House, Meadow Drive, Hampton-in-Arden B92 0BD 0.15 PR 8 No change 

 

P
age 18

https://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR76.pdf
https://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR77.pdf
https://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Planning/BLR/PR78.pdf


 

 

Appendix B –Assessment of New Brownfield Land Site Submissions 

Introduction 

To be included on the Brownfield Land Register sites should meet the definition of previously developed land as set out in the glossary at Annex 2 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework, which is: 

“Land which is or was occupied by a permanent structure, including the curtilage of the developed land (although it should not be assumed that the 
whole of the curtilage should be developed) and any associated fixed surface infrastructure. This excludes: land that is or was last occupied by 
agricultural or forestry buildings; land that has been developed for minerals extraction or waste disposal by landfill, where provision for restoration has 
been made through development management procedures; land in built-up areas such as residential gardens, parks, recreation grounds and allotments; 
and land that was previously developed but where the remains of the permanent structure or fixed surface structure have blended into the landscape.” 

To be considered as previously developed land, sites must meet the criteria in the definition. For each element of the definition, sites have been tested to 
see if they comply. Sites have been awarded a ‘pass’ where they comply with an element of the definition and a ‘fail’ where they do not. For ease of 
reference a ‘pass’ is colour coded green and a ‘fail’ is colour coded red. Where there are some uncertainties, these have not been colour coded. 

If a site fails any of the PDL tests (i.e. has any red markers), it is not considered to be Brownfield Land.  

P
age 19



 

 

SOLIHULL MBC – BROWNFIELD LAND REGISTER – SITE ASSESSMENT 

 

References  

Brownfield Land Register BLR/065 

SHELAA (if applicable) N/A 

Site Name Redwoods, 33 Wooton Green Lane, Balsall 
Common, CV7 7EZ 

 

PDL Assessment Pass/ 
Fail 

Comments 

Test:   

 The land is or was occupied by a 
permanent structure. 

P Yes. The site is occupied by a structure.  

 The land is/was within the curtilage of a 
permanent structure and does not 
include any land that isn’t curtilage 
land. 

P The land is within the curtilage of the 
permanent structures on site.  

 The land is not or has not been 
occupied by agricultural or forestry 
buildings. 

P Site is residential. 

 The land is not a former minerals or 
waste disposal site with restoration 
conditions. 

P No 

 The land is not a residential garden, 
park, recreation ground or allotment in 
a built up area 

F The site includes a residential garden in a 
built up area. 

 The land may have been previously 
developed but the remains of the 
permanent structure have not blended 
into the landscape in the process of 
time. 

P N/A 

Conclusion on PDL 
(if all previous questions answered pass) 

No No 

 

BLR Assessment Y/N Comments 

Suitable N  

Available Y  

Achievable Y  

Located in the Green Belt Y  

Capacity (range) 1-3 

How Capacity Assessed (A policy compliant 
approach has been used. Any changes in policy 
could result in an increased capacity). 

Redevelopment of the site should not have a 
materially greater impact on the openness of the 
Green Belt. Therefore, in the event the site was 
suitable, capacity would be restricted.. 

 

BLR Conclusion Y/N Comments 

Include site in Brownfield Land Register N  

Page 20



 

 

BLR/065 – Redwoods, 33 Wooton Green Lane, Balsall Common, CV7 7EZ  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source : Google Maps  

P
age 21



 

 

SOLIHULL MBC – BROWNFIELD LAND REGISTER – SITE ASSESSMENT 

 

References  

Brownfield Land Register BLR/066 

SHELAA (if applicable) N/A 

Site Name Land adjacent to 339 Lugtrout Lane, Catherine-
de-Barnes, Solihull B91 2TW 

 

PDL Assessment Pass/ 
Fail 

Comments 

Test:   

 The land is or was occupied by a 
permanent structure. 

Partly Application form states a machinery 
store is located on site. Although the site 
is largely undeveloped land. 

 The land is/was within the curtilage of a 
permanent structure and does not 
include any land that isn’t curtilage 
land. 

F Much of the site is an undeveloped 
agricultural field/paddock 

 The land is not or has not been 
occupied by agricultural or forestry 
buildings. 

P Although the majority of the site is 
undeveloped. 

 The land is not a former minerals or 
waste disposal site with restoration 
conditions. 

P No 

 The land is not a residential garden, 
park, recreation ground or allotment in 
a built up area 

P Site is not part of the residential garden. 

 The land may have been previously 
developed but the remains of the 
permanent structure have not blended 
into the landscape in the process of 
time. 

P N/A 

Conclusion on PDL 
(if all previous questions answered pass) 

No No. 

 

BLR Assessment Y/N Comments 

Suitable N  

Available Y  

Achievable Y  

Located in the Green Belt Y  

Capacity (range) N/A 

How Capacity Assessed (A policy compliant 
approach has been used. Any changes in policy 
could result in an increased capacity). 

Redevelopment of the site should not have a 
materially greater impact on the openness of the 
Green Belt.  

 

BLR Conclusion Y/N Comments 

Include site in Brownfield Land Register N  

Page 22



 

 

BLR/066 - Land adjacent to 339 Lugtrout Lane, Catherine-de-Barnes, Solihull B91 2TW 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Source : Google Maps  

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C –New Local Plan ‘Call for Sites’ sites to be included on the Brownfield Land Register 

Introduction 

To be included on the Brownfield Land Register sites should meet the definition of previously developed land as set out in the glossary at Annex 2 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework, which is: 

“Land which is or was occupied by a permanent structure, including the curtilage of the developed land (although it should not be assumed that the 
whole of the curtilage should be developed) and any associated fixed surface infrastructure. This excludes: land that is or was last occupied by 
agricultural or forestry buildings; land that has been developed for minerals extraction or waste disposal by landfill, where provision for restoration has 
been made through development management procedures; land in built-up areas such as residential gardens, parks, recreation grounds and allotments; 
and land that was previously developed but where the remains of the permanent structure or fixed surface structure have blended into the landscape.” 

To be considered as previously developed land, sites must meet the criteria in the definition. For each element of the definition, sites have been tested to 
see if they comply. Sites have been awarded a ‘pass’ where they comply with an element of the definition and a ‘fail’ where they do not. For ease of 
reference a ‘pass’ is colour coded green and a ‘fail’ is colour coded red. Where there are some uncertainties, these have not been colour coded. 

If a site fails any of the PDL tests (i.e. has any red markers), it is not considered to be Brownfield Land. 

 

  

P
age 25



SOLIHULL MBC – BROWNFIELD LAND REGISTER – SITE ASSESSMENT 

 

References  

Brownfield Land Register CFS 511 

SHELAA (if applicable)  

Site Name Stoneycroft, Wooton Lane Balsall Common 

 

PDL Assessment Pass/ 
Fail 

Comments 

Test:   

 The land is or was occupied by a 
permanent structure. 

P Yes. The site is occupied by a structure.  

 The land is/was within the curtilage of a 
permanent structure and does not 
include any land that isn’t curtilage 
land. 

P The land is within the curtilage of the 
permanent structures on site.  

 The land is not or has not been 
occupied by agricultural or forestry 
buildings. 

P The site is residential. 

 The land is not a former minerals or 
waste disposal site with restoration 
conditions. 

P No 

 The land is not a residential garden, 
park, recreation ground or allotment in 
a built up area 

P The site is in residential use separate 
from the main built up area. 

 The land may have been previously 
developed but the remains of the 
permanent structure have not blended 
into the landscape in the process of 
time. 

P N/A 

Conclusion on PDL 
(if all previous questions answered pass) 

Yes Yes 

 

BLR Assessment Y/N Comments 

Suitable Y  

Available Y  

Achievable Y  

Located in the Green Belt Y  

Capacity (range) 1-3 

How Capacity Assessed (A policy compliant 
approach has been used. Any changes in policy 
could result in an increased capacity). 

Redevelopment of the site should not have a 
materially greater impact on the openness of the 
Green Belt. Therefore, capacity would be 
restricted on this site. 

 

BLR Conclusion Y/N Comments 

Include site in Brownfield Land Register Y  

Page 26



CfS 511 – Stoneycroft, Wooton Lane Balsall Common 

Source : Google Maps 

P
age 27



SOLIHULL MBC – BROWNFIELD LAND REGISTER – SITE ASSESSMENT 

 

References  

Brownfield Land Register CFS 542 

SHELAA (if applicable)  

Site Name Mayfield and Melbourne, Clock Lane, Bickenhill, 
Solihull 

 

PDL Assessment Pass/ 
Fail 

Comments 

Test:   

 The land is or was occupied by a 
permanent structure. 

P Yes. The site is occupied by a structure 
including residential dwellings and 
commercial workshop building.  

 The land is/was within the curtilage of a 
permanent structure and does not 
include any land that isn’t curtilage 
land. 

P The land is within the curtilage of the 
permanent structures on site.  

 The land is not or has not been 
occupied by agricultural or forestry 
buildings. 

P The land is not occupied by agricultural or 
forestry buildings. 

 The land is not a former minerals or 
waste disposal site with restoration 
conditions. 

P No 

 The land is not a residential garden, 
park, recreation ground or allotment in 
a built up area 

P Current use includes a pair of semi-
detached houses. Site is not in a built up 
area and therefore falls within the 
definition of PDL. 

 The land may have been previously 
developed but the remains of the 
permanent structure have not blended 
into the landscape in the process of 
time. 

P N/A 

Conclusion on PDL 
(if all previous questions answered pass) 

Yes Yes 

 

BLR Assessment Y/N Comments 

Suitable Y  

Available Y  

Achievable Y  

Located in the Green Belt Y  

Capacity (range) 2-4 

How Capacity Assessed (A policy compliant 
approach has been used. Any changes in policy 
could result in an increased capacity). 

Redevelopment of the site should not have a 
materially greater impact on the openness of the 
Green Belt. Therefore, capacity would be 
restricted on this site. 

 

BLR Conclusion Y/N Comments 

Include site in Brownfield Land Register Y  

Page 28



CfS 542 – Mayfield and Melbourne, Clock Lane, Bickenhill, Solihull 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   Source : Google Maps  

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix D - New Sites from the Planning Register to be included on the updated (2020) 
Brownfield Land Register 

Ref: Site  Site Area 
(ha) 

Site Capacity 

PR79 124 Wagon Lane, Solihull B92 7PD 0.05 15 

PR80 Milk House Farm, Salter Street, Earlswood Solihull B94 6DF 0.15 1 

PR81 Princes Gate, 8 Homer Road, Solihull B91 3QQ 0.43 60 

PR82 Sapphire House, Streetsbrook Road, Solihull B91 1RD 0.22 9 

PR83 25 Station Road Knowle Solihull B93 0HL 0.16 9 

Total 94 

 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Brownfield Land Register
	Appendix A.docx
	Appendix B.docx
	Appendix C.docx
	Appendix D.docx


